
 

Civic Centre, Home Gardens, Dartford, Kent, DA1 1DR 
Tel: 01322 343434 Fax: 01322 343422 Web: www.dartford.gov.uk 

 
 
 

Scrutiny 
Committee 

 
 

Councillor S N Gosine (Chairman) 
Councillor B Garden (Vice-Chairman) 

 
Councillor E H Ben Moussa 
Councillor J Burrell 
Councillor S P Butterfill 
Councillor R M Currans 
Councillor P Cutler 
Councillor C S McLean 
Councillor D T Nicklen 
Councillor A J Oakley-Dow 
 

Councillor V Oguntope 
Councillor T Oliver 
Councillor Mrs J A Ozog 
Councillor D J Reynolds 
Councillor L J Reynolds 
Councillor A S Sandhu, MBE 
Councillor Mrs R F Storey 
 

 
 
 
 
 

A meeting of the above Committee will be held on 

 
Tuesday 12 November 2019 

 
 

at 7 pm at the Civic Centre, Dartford 

 
 
 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This page is intentionally left blank 
 



 

 

 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

AGENDA 
 

Tuesday 12 November 2019 
 
 

1. Apologies for Absence   

 

2. Declarations of Interest   

 

 To receive declarations of interest from Members including the 
terms(s) of the Grant of Dispensation (if any) by the Audit Board or 
Managing Director. 
 

 

3. Confirmation of the Minutes of the meeting held on 9 July 2019  (Pages 1 - 
6) 

 

4. Chairman's Update   

 

5. Urgent Items   

 

 The Chairman will announce his decision as to whether there are 
any urgent items and their position on the agenda.  
 

 

6. To consider references from other Committees (if any)   

 

 There are no references from other Committees for Members to 
consider at present. 
 

 

7. Regulation 9 Notice  (Pages 7 - 
10) 

 

 To consider any issues arising from the Regulation 9 Notice (Forward 
Plan) for the period 15 October 2019 to 29 February 2020. 
 

 

8. Dartford Cricket Club Update (October 2019)  (Pages 11 
- 14) 

 

 To note the attached report and update from Dartford Cricket Club 
(October 2019) attached at Appendix A to the report. 
 

 



 

 

9. Orchard Theatre Annual Report & Accounts for the Year ending 
31 March 2019 (Work Programme)  

(Pages 15 
- 36) 

 

 To note the attached report and Appendices. 
 

 

10. Review Committee's Rolling Work Plan for 2019-20  (Pages 37 
- 40) 

 

 



 

1 

DARTFORD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

MINUTES of the meeting of the Scrutiny Committee held on Tuesday 9 July 2019 at 
7.00 pm. 

 
PRESENT: 
 

Councillor Sacha Gosine (Chairman) 
Councillor Emma Ben Moussa 
Councillor John Burrell 
Councillor Sue Butterfill 
Councillor Paul Cutler 
Councillor Matthew Davis (Acting Vice-Chairman) 
Councillor Derek E Hunnisett 
Councillor Ricky Jones 
Councillor Danny Nicklen 
Councillor Adrian Oakley-Dow 
Councillor Tom Oliver 
Councillor Lucas J Reynolds 
Councillor Mrs. Rebecca F Storey 
 

 
ABSENT: 
 

Councillor Brian Garden (Vice-Chairman) 
Councillor Rosanna M Currans 
Councillor Calvin S McLean 
Councillor Victoria Oguntope 
Councillor Julie A Ozog 
Councillor Denzil J Reynolds 
Councillor Avtar Sandhu MBE 
 

 
 Dartford Borough Council Officers:- 

 
 David Hook – Democratic Services Officer 

 
 

 
CABINET MEMBERS: 
 

Leader of the Council, Councillor J A Kite MBE 

 
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 
Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Councillors: B Garden 
(Substitute Cllr. M Davis), C S McLean, V Oguntope (Sub. Cllr. R Jones), J A 
Ozog, D J Reynolds (Sub. Cllr. D E Hunnisett). 
 

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

3. CONFIRMATION OF THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 20 
NOVEMBER 2018  
 

Page 1 Agenda Item 3



SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

TUESDAY 9 JULY 2019 
 
 

2 

RESOLVED: 
 
That the Minutes of the meeting held on 20 November 2018 be confirmed as 
accurate by those Members present who had attended those proceedings. 
 

4. CHAIRMAN'S INTRODUCTION  
 
In his first meeting as Chairman of the Committee, the Shadow Leader of the 
Council asked Members to introduce themselves. 
 
He advised that he had no policy statements to make concerning the future 
direction of the Committee’s work at present. 
 
  
 

5. COMMITTEE'S TERMS OF REFERENCE (TORS)  
 
Members RESOLVED to: 
 
Note the Committee’s Terms of Reference (ToRs) as approved at the Annual 
Meeting of the Council on 22 May 2019.  
 

6. URGENT ITEMS  
 
The Chairman confirmed that there were no urgent items for consideration by 
Members. 
 

7. TO CONSIDER REFERENCES FROM OTHER COMMITTEES (IF ANY)  
 
The Chairman confirmed that there were no references from other 
Committees for Members to consider. 
 

8. REGULATION 9 NOTICE  
 
The Committee Co-ordinator confirmed, for the benefit of new Members, that 
any item listed on the Regulation 9 Notice could be drawn-down by the 
Committee for consideration at a future date, under the Draw downs process 
set out in the Committee’s Protocol [Min. No. 11 refers].  

 
RESOLVED:  
 

That the contents of the Regulation 9 Notice (formerly the Forward Plan) for 
the period 14 June 2019 to 31 October 2019 be noted. 
 

9. PRINCES PARK ANNUAL UPDATE 2018-19  
 
This report was presented by the Committee Co-ordinator in the absence of 
the report author.  
 

Page 2Agenda Item 3



SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

TUESDAY 9 JULY 2019 
 
 

3 

Appendix A to the report comprised an annual activity report from the 
Operations Manager, Dartford Football Club (DFC) for the period July 2018 to 
May 2019.  
 
Principal  areas highlighted in the Appendix included: increased golf usage 
(including foot golf), increased use of the Community and Mini football 
pitches, a successful 1st season pitch-share with Millwall Lionesses who 
played on Sundays in the Women’s Super League Division 2, continued use 
by local football clubs of the Community Pitch and Mini Pitches, strong uptake 
of the Leigh Academy programme – a 2 year full-time education and football 
development programme for 16-18 year olds, a thriving pre-Academy 
operation for 7-16 year olds, plus a Girls Squad and a Dartford Juniors 
Section. 
 
In response to a specific question from a Member concerning the Council 
grant to Dartford Football Club of £90K in 2018-19 [set to continue in 2019-
20], the Leader of the Council responded on behalf of Cabinet, rather than as 
a Director of the Club. 
 
He advised Members that the Council’s grant to DFC was aimed at ensuring 
the best possible range of facilities in Princess Park for the use of the wider 
Dartford community, it was not simply a grant to fund the Club. Prior to 2005/6 
Princess Park had essentially comprised an expensive to run golf facility. The 
Council’s grant of £90K per annum had transformed Princess Park from a golf 
facility into a multi-facility community asset. The Council’s policy of enhancing 
and developing such community facilities had been repeated in the 
development of the Dartford Judo Centre, the new Cricket Pavilion in Hesketh 
Park, the re-development of the Fairfield complex and pool, and the soon to 
be completed Dartford Rugby Club facility.   
 
  RESOLVED: 
 
That Members note the repot and Appendix A from Dartford Football Club. 
 

10. SCRUTINY COMMITTEE ANNUAL REPORT 2018-19  
 
The report from the Committee’s Co-ordinating Officer detailed the work 
undertaken by the Scrutiny Committee in the previous 2018-19 municipal 
year. 
 
The Acting Vice-Chairman, who had been Vice-Chairman of the Committee in 
the period under review, commended the report to Members and thanked the 
report author for his report and general support to the Committee in the period 
under review. 
 
  RESOLVED: 
 

1. That Members note the report and Appendices detailing the work 
undertaken by the Scrutiny Committee in the preceding 2018-19 
municipal year; 

Page 3 Agenda Item 3



SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

TUESDAY 9 JULY 2019 
 
 

4 

2. That the report be submitted to the General Assembly of the Council.  
 

11. SCRUTINY COMMITTEE PROTOCOL  
 
Members were asked to note the Committee’s Protocol, recently updated by 
the Council’s Head of Legal Services [June 2019].  
 
The Leader of the Council highlighted for the Chairman and other new 
Members, the importance of the draw-down facility in the Protocol (paras A.1 
to A.7) which enabled the Committee to draw-down for the purposes of 
scrutiny, decisions/action of the Council and Cabinet and/or the scrutiny/of the 
effects/outcomes of a [Cabinet/Council] decision post implementation. 
 
He explained that previously, Dartford Council (and many others) had been 
run on a Committee system, with responsibility for specific areas of Council 
policy devolved to relevant Committees. The Council had subsequently voted 
to adopt a Cabinet form of governance (similar to central government), with 
the power for all Council decision making and policy implementation residing 
with Cabinet, with reference to the General Assembly of the Council as 
appropriate. 
 
In the case of Dartford, following the adoption of the Cabinet model of 
governance, the present administration had created the Cabinet Advisory 
bodies CAP A and CAP B, which purposely sat on Mondays prior to Cabinet 
meetings on Thursdays, and shared the same meeting agendas. CAP A and 
CAP B through the sharing of those common meeting agendas, were able to 
scrutinise Cabinet decisions prior to implementation: this was not the case 
with the Scrutiny Committee who met subsequent to Cabinet with its own 
agenda. This made the draw-down function available to the Scrutiny 
Committee all the more important and relevant, and enabled Members to 
scrutinise Cabinet decisions on an ad-hoc basis outside of the Committee’s 
Work Plan [Min. No. 13 refers]. 
 
The Chairman thanked the Leader for his comments and advice. 
 
  RESOLVED: 
 
That Members note the Committee’s Protocol [dated June 2019] as updated 
by the Head of Legal Services. 
 

12. STATUTORY GUIDANCE ON OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY IN LOCAL AND 
COMBINED AUTHORITIES  
 
The covering report presented at Appendix A, Ministry of Housing, 
Communities & Local Government Statutory Guidance on Overview and 
Scrutiny in Local and Combined  Authorities for Members to note. 
 
The Committee Co-ordinator confirmed, on behalf of the Council’s Head of 
Legal Services, that the salient points in the Ministry guidance were contained 
in the Committee’s Protocol [Min. No. 11 refers]. 

Page 4Agenda Item 3



SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

TUESDAY 9 JULY 2019 
 
 

5 

 
13. COMMITTEE ROLLING WORK PROGRAMME FOR 2019-20 AND BEYOND  

 
The report asked Members to identify further items for inclusion in the 
Committee’s current rolling Work Plan (attached as Appendix A to the report) 
for the remainder of the 2019-20 municipal year and beyond. 
 
The Chairman noted that the current Work Plan consisted primarily of annual 
updates for Princess Park, Dartford Cricket Club in Hesketh Park and the 
Annual Report and Accounts for the Orchard Theatre Dartford. He 
encouraged Members to make further proposals that evening, or 
subsequently to himself or the Vive-Chairman Councillor Garden. 
 
  RESOLVED: 
 
That Members note the contents of the Committee’s current Work Plan for the 
remainder of the 2019-20 municipal cycle as set out in Appendix A to the 
report. 
    
 
 

 
The meeting closed at 7.29 pm 

 
  

 
 

Councillor S N Gosine 
CHAIRMAN 

 
 
 
  

Page 5 Agenda Item 3



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 6



15 October 2019 - 29 February 2020 
 

1 of 3 

 

DARTFORD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

LIST OF FORTHCOMING KEY DECISIONS – REGULATION 9 NOTICE 

 
This document lists all key decisions due  to be taken  in the forthcoming 4 months in accordance with the Local Authorities 
(Executive Arrangements) (Meeting and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012. It also lists and contains particulars of 
any items where it is likely that the public will be excluded because consideration of the matter in public would disclose confidential of 
exempt information. The reasons for going into closed session are given in each case. An updated list will be published monthly. 
 
All decisions are made by Cabinet collectively. 
 
Cabinet Members: 
 
Councillor J A Kite, MBE, Portfolio: Leader & Housing 
Councillor C J Shippam, Portfolio: Deputy Leader 
Councillor Mrs A D Allen, MBE, Portfolio: Youth, Health & Wellbeing 
Councillor S H Brown, Portfolio: Waste & Environment 
Councillor A R Lloyd, Portfolio: Finance 
Councillor Mrs P A Thurlow, Portfolio: Arts & Culture 
Councillor R J Wells, Portfolio: Community Safety 
 
All of the reports contained in this list, where open to the public, will be published on the Council’s website www.dartford.gov.uk at least 5 
clear days before the day of the meeting or, if later, whenever they become available. All reports provide details of any background 
documents which have been relied upon to a material degree during production of the report, or relied upon when formulating 
recommendations or options for decision. Hard copies or extracts from these reports can be obtained on request by emailing 
memberservices@dartford.gov.uk. 
 
This notice supersedes all previous notices. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 7

A
genda Item

 7



 

2 of 3 
 

TITLE OF REPORT AND BRIEF 
SUMMARY OF MATTER TO BE 
DECIDED 

DATE OF 
CABINET/GAC 
MEETING OR 
PERIOD WITHIN 
WHICH THE 
DECISION WILL 
BE TAKEN AND 
BY WHOM 

WHO IS TO BE 
CONSULTED BEFORE 
TAKING THE 
DECISION AND HOW 

BACKGROUND 
PAPERS 

NAME, TITLE AND CONTACT 
DETAILS OF REPORT AUTHOR 

OPEN OR CLOSED 
(if closed the 
reason is specified) 

Public Consultation on the new 
Dartford Local Plan 
 
To consider a document for 
consultation outlining key planning 
policies for the future of the Borough, 
building from supporting 
documentation and consultation in 
2018, and to approve a public 
consultation on the document. 
 

Cabinet 
31 Oct 2019 
 

Past consultation has 
occurred and further 
consultation is 
proposed. 

 
 

Mark Aplin, Planning Policy 
Manager 
Tel: 01322 343202 
mark.aplin@dartford.gov.uk 

OPEN 

LA Support (Kingdom) 
Environmental Enforcement 
Contract Extension and Further 
Offences Proposals 
 
To approve proposed new contract 
arrangements with LA Support 
(Kingdom) that would see a new 
agreed financial split between LA 
Support (Kingdom) and the Council 
and expand the current Litter and 
Dog Enforcement Scheme for a 
further 2 years from 25th January 
2020 to include a range of other 
offences, including Littering from 
Vehicles, Commercial (Trade) Waste 
offences, Fly Posting, Graffiti and 
Public Space Protection Order 
breaches. 
 

Cabinet 
31 Oct 2019 
 

  
 

Mark Salisbury, Enforcement, 
Regulatory Services and 
Community Safety Unit Manager 
 
mark.salisbury@dartford.gov.uk 

OPEN 

P
age 8

A
genda Item

 7



 

3 of 3 
 

TITLE OF REPORT AND BRIEF 
SUMMARY OF MATTER TO BE 
DECIDED 

DATE OF 
CABINET/GAC 
MEETING OR 
PERIOD WITHIN 
WHICH THE 
DECISION WILL 
BE TAKEN AND 
BY WHOM 

WHO IS TO BE 
CONSULTED BEFORE 
TAKING THE 
DECISION AND HOW 

BACKGROUND 
PAPERS 

NAME, TITLE AND CONTACT 
DETAILS OF REPORT AUTHOR 

OPEN OR CLOSED 
(if closed the 
reason is specified) 

Housing Repairs and Maintenance 
Contract - Acceptance of Tender 
 
To consider the tenders for the 
Housing Repairs and Maintenance 
Measured Term Contract to deliver 
reactive repairs, void property works, 
disabled adaptations, out of hours 
repairs and programmed works to 
the Council’s housing stock and 
appoint a successful contractor from 
April 2020. 
 

Cabinet 
31 Oct 2019 
 

Tenants, Leaseholders, 
Dartford Tenants and 
Leaseholders Forum. 

 
 

Peter Dosad, Head of Housing 
Tel: 01322 343327 
peter.dosad@dartford.gov.uk 

CLOSED - if 
reference needs to 
be made to the 
Appendix to this 
report , which is 
exempt under 
Paragraph 3 of 
Schedule 12A of the 
Local Government 
Act 1972 (as 
amended) 

Write-Off of National Non-
Domestic Rates 
 
To consider writing-off National Non-
Domestic Rate debts where it has 
not been possible to obtain payment 
because of insolvency, because the 
ratepayer cannot be traced or where 
the debt is otherwise irrecoverable. 
 

Cabinet 
5 Dec 2019 
 

  
 

Sue Cressall, Revenues Manager 
Tel: 01732 227041 
sue.cressall@sevenoaks.gov.uk 

CLOSED - if 
reference needs to 
be made to the 
Appendix to this 
report, which is 
exempt under 
Paragraph 3 of 
Schedule 12A of the 
Local Government 
Act 1972 (as 
amended) 

 
 

     

P
age 9

A
genda Item

 7



P
age 10

A
genda Item

 7



 
 

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
12 NOVEMBER 2019 

 

DARTFORD CRICKET CLUB PAVILION 

 

BRENT WARD 
 
1. Summary 

 
1.1 To update the Committee on progress with the community use of the Dartford   

Cricket Club Pavilion. 
 

2. RECOMMENDATION 
 
2.1  That the Committee notes the Dartford Cricket Club’s report enclosed at  

Appendix A. 

 

 
3. Background and Discussion 
 

3.1. The  Dartford Cricket Club’s pavilion was opened in March 2015, under 
a 25 year lease, granted by the Council.  

3.2. The Club’s first year’s activity in the new facility was reported to the 
Committee in September 2016. Following the Committee’s request for 
more detailed monitoring information, Cabinet agreed (min number 59) 
that operators of all facilities that have benefited from Council investment 
be invited to submit a short annual review for publication which would 
summarise their activities and links with the community. 

3.3. Dartford Cricket Club has  prepared a report on the community use of its 
pavilion, as attached at Appendix A. This report includes details of the 
Club’s programme of community activities which will help achieve health 
benefits for participating residents, in line with the Council’s Health and 
Well Being Corporate Plan objective. 

4. Relationship to the Corporate Plan 
 
HW 1. Increase the opportunities for participating in sporting, cultural 
and leisure activities.  
 

5. Financial, legal, staffing and other implications and risk assessments* 
 

Financial Implications  None 

Legal Implications  None  

Staffing Implications  None 

Administrative 
Implications 

 None  

Page 11 Agenda Item 8



 
 

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
12 NOVEMBER 2019 

 

Risk Assessment No uncertainties and/or constraints 

 
 

  
6. Details of Exempt Information Category 
 
None. 
 
7. Appendices 
 

Appendix A – Dartford Cricket Club -Community Use Information 
(October 2019) 

 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

Documents consulted Date / 
File Ref 

Report Author Section and 
Directorate 

Exempt 
Information 
Category 

 
  Stephen Jefferson 

(01322) 343524 
Policy and 
Corporate 
Support 
Internal 
Services 

N/A 

 

Page 12Agenda Item 8



APPENDIX A 
 

Community Use Information - October 2019  
 

 
QUANTATIVE METRICS  

 Membership numbers 
o Junior Players - 123 active members across 5 junior teams 
o Senior Players - 51 active members (age 17+) across 4 Saturday and 1 Sunday team  
o Social Members (includes Vice Presidents) - 52 

 Coaching 
o Active Coaches (qualified) - 6   
o Active Volunteers (not qualified) - 17 

 Pavilion Usage 
o Our function room continues to prove popular with most weeks seeing bookings on 

Fridays and Saturdays. Demand comfortably outstrips availability. Advanced bookings for 
2020 already taken. 

o Continue to provide facilities for St John’s Ambulance training (40 hours per week). 
o We also act as a home to a Dance Group; a Running Club and a Cycling Club all heavily 

involved in the local community. 
o With the change in the Ward boundaries the Pavilion has now become a polling station 

for the newly created New Town Ward and has since been used as a) Polling station for 
both local and European elections. b) Monthly counsellor surgery meetings. c) 
Neighbourhood watch meetings. 

o In December Orchard Garage will be holding their Christmas Charity function in aid of The 
Ellenor Hospice in our upstairs function hall. 

o Hosted a charity Halloween Ball for Southfleet Cricket club – November 2019. 
o We have started holding small wake functions during the week in our downstairs club 

room. 
o In connection with DBC we open the Pavilion/car park one evening in December to host 

“Santa” (ref Elaine Henson DBC). 
  

QUALITATIVE COMMENTARY 

 Schools Program 
o Six primary schools were contacted with the offer of DCC providing cricket development 

as part of the schools sports programme. Gateway were the only school to take part and 
we provided a qualified coach over a 6 week period as part of their curriculum. 

o Hosted qualifying round of ECB Kwik Cricket for Dartford primary schools. 12 schools took 
part in the event at HP. 

o Hosted girls ECB Kwik Cricket for Dartford primary schools. 
o Both Kwik cricket tournaments have been booked into the calendar for 2020. 

 
 Community Activity  

o Interclub cricket match well attended and raised money for ‘CRY’ charity. 
o Hosted an ECB World Cup cricket day which was locally advertised to try and encourage 

inclusion of families living in the local area. 
o Hosted two U12 20/20 matches on behalf of Kent Cricket  

Page 13 Agenda Item 8



o Set up a collaboration with Stone Cricket Club whereby they use Oakfield Park to play 
matches and also use the cricket nets at Hesketh Park on Weds evenings. 

o Hosted monthly quiz nights – money raised split between various charities. 
o Representatives from the Mayor’s office attended the DCC Junior cricket presentation 

day in September with charity collecting buckets (Eleanor Hospice). 

Page 14Agenda Item 8



SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
12 November 2019 

 

THE ORCHARD THEATRE ANNUAL REPORT & ACCOUNTS 
2018/19 

 

 
1. Summary 

 
1.1 This report presents the Annual Report & Accounts for 2018/19 from the 

management company of The Orchard Theatre, Orchard Theatre Dartford Limited. 

2. RECOMMENDATION 
 
2.1  That the 2018/19 Annual Report & Accounts for The Orchard Theatre, attached 

at Appendices B and C to this report, be noted. 

 
3. Background and Discussion 
 

3.1. The Orchard Theatre is managed by Orchard Theatre Dartford Limited 
which is part of the HQ Theatres & Hospitality and QDOS Entertainment 
group, under a twenty year management contract with the Council, which 
is now in its tenth year. The contract requires the Contractor to submit 
an Annual Report setting out the performance of the Theatre in relation 
to a series of performance indicators which are specified in the contract. 

3.2. The targets are not to be rigidly applied but to be used as reference 
points against which to measure whether, overall, the services are being 
provided as envisaged. The Monitoring Schedule is attached as 
Appendix A. 

3.3. The Annual Report for 2018/19 is attached as Appendix B. 

3.4. The Annual Accounts have been received and are attached at Appendix 
C. The net profit share received by the Council for 2018/19 is £50,200 
compared to the previous year’s profit share of £53,700 for 2017/18. 

4. Relationship to the Corporate Plan 
 
 HW2 Increase the opportunities for participating in sporting, cultural 
 and leisure opportunities. 
 
5. Financial, legal, staffing and other administrative implications and risk 

assessments 
 

Financial Implications The contract for the management of The Orchard 
Theatre is based on the Council paying the 
contractor a set management fee each year, and 
receiving a small share of any net profit.  The net 
management fee payable for the financial year 
2018/19 was £363,490.   

Legal Implications None  

Staffing Implications None 

Page 15 Agenda Item 9



SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
12 November 2019 

 

Administrative 
Implications 

None  

Risk Assessment The transfer of the Theatre management to a 
private operator has significantly reduced the 
commercial risk to the Council, without 
compromising the quality of the Theatre or its 
important role in the community.  

 

  
6. Details of Exempt Information Category 
 
 Not applicable 
 
 
7. Appendices 
 

Appendix A – Monitoring Schedule; 
Appendix B – The Orchard Annual Report 2018/19; 
Appendix C – Orchard Theatre Annual Accounts to 31 March 2019 
 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

Documents consulted Date / 
File Ref 

Report Author Section and 
Directorate 

Exempt 
Information 
Category 

 
Contract for Theatre 
Management Services 16 
March 2010. 

 Stephen Jefferson 
(01322) 343524 

Policy & 
Corporate 
Support 

N/A 

 

Page 16Agenda Item 9



Page 17 Agenda Item 9

sjefferson
Text Box
Appendix A



Page 18Agenda Item 9



 

1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

ANNUAL REPORT 2018-2019 

APPENDIX B

Page 19 Agenda Item 9



 

2 

 

 

 

CONTENTS 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY & KEY STATS 
 

1. THEATRE PROGRAMME       
 

  1.1 PROGRAMME OVERVIEW 
  1.2  PERFORMANCES BY GENRE 
  1.3  PERFORMANCE ANALYSIS  
  1.4 TARGET ATTENDANCE 
  
  2. MARKETING & SALES ACTIVITY 
 
  3. COMMUNITY & EDUCATION ACTIVITY 
 
  4. FRONT OF HOUSE 
 
  5. ACCESS 
 
  6. CUSTOMER FEEDBACK 
 
  7. BUILDINGS & PREMISES 
 
  8. HEALTH & SAFETY 
 
  9. TRAINING 
 
  10. HUMAN RESOURCES 
 
  11. PERSONNEL UPDATE 
 
  12. FINANCIAL 
 

 
 
APPENDICES 

  APPENDIX 1 – PROGRAMME DETAIL BY GENRE 
  APPENDIX 2 – STATUTORY ACCOUNTS 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 20Agenda Item 9



 

3 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY & KEY STATS 
2018-19 was HQ Theatre & Hospitality’s (HQT&H) ninth successful year managing The Orchard Theatre, Dartford (OTD) on 
behalf of Dartford Borough Council (DBC).   
 
Highlights of a year which saw further growth across a rich and varied programme included: 
 

• 232,030 attenders  

• 63% average capacity (+ 3% against prior year) 

• 406 Performances (+114 vs contract target figure) 

• 60% of tickets sold to Dartford residents (+20% vs contract target figure) 

 
OTD has now established its place on the number one touring circuit, alongside the UK’s big metropolitan cities.   
 

1. THEATRE PROGRAMME 
1.1 PROGRAMME OVERVIEW 
Musical Theatre Programme 
A robust and successful programme of musical theatre productions were presented during the year, playing to the theatre’s 
strengths.  These included: 
 

 Beautiful – the Carole King Story 

 Dirty Dancing 

 The Band – The Take That Musical 

 Benidorm Live 

 Calendar Girls the Musical 

 Rock of Ages 

 Saturday Night Fever 

 Fat Friends the Musical 

 Spamalot 

 Rat Pack Live 

 20th Century Boy 

 Son of a Preacher Man 

 Summer Holiday 

 Let it Be 
 
Pantomime 
The ever-popular pantomime performed strongly again with Aladdin featuring Marti Pellow.  The show was incredibly well-
received and played to more than 31,000 people (including many local schools and Dartford families) across 39 performances.    
Drama Programme 
A revitalised and embedded programme of drama included: 
 

 The Classic Thriller Company’s The Case of the Frightened Lady led by stage and TV star John Partridge.  
 

 Our fourth Peter James premiere production The House on Cold Hill, following sold out tours of Not Dead Enough and 
The Perfect Murder.  Peter James is the UK’s best-selling author. 

 
Classical, Ballet & Dance 
The year saw the Royal Philharmonic Orchestra return to the Orchard and Moscow City Ballet bring their acclaimed production 
of Swan Lake.  Alongside this, Pasha Kovalev – a household name since his appearances on Strictly Come Dancing toured in 
with his one-man show; Britain’s Got Talent street-dance troupe Flawless performed to rapturous reception; whilst Harry 
Judd, Louis Smith and Aston Merrygold featured in the dance show Rip It Up. 
 
 
 
 

Page 21 Agenda Item 9



 

4 

 

Live Music & Comedy 
Live music performances staged included The Hollies, Russell Watson, Elkie Brooks, Jools Holland, Sam Bailey, Jane McDonald 
and 10cc.  Sell-out comedy appearances from Sarah Millican, Brian Conley, Jimeoin, Henning Wehn and Joe Pasquale topped 
off a programme of popular shows for all.   
 
Events 
The popular themed dining event programme included Only Fools and Three Courses, Bubbles and Buble and Fawlty Towers.   

 
Community Programme 
The Orchard’s commitment to community engagement increased this year and the programme included open day events, 
half term fun days and work experience placements.  Alongside this our Community choir and Youth Theatre continued to 
flourish; whilst we introduced a brand-new ukulele club and Drama Therapy group.    
 

See Appendix 1 – Programme Detail By Month 

 
 
1.2 PERFORMANCES BY GENRE 

Genre Target Dec-13 13/14 14/15 15/16 16/17 17/18 18/19 Target 

Variance 

Music 40 58 42 43 58 49 56 72 32 

Comedy 30 21 22 30 29 23 23 24 -6 

Variety 40 37 42 41 46 35 27 19 -21 

Children’s Entertainment 18 24 41 36 69 43 53 58 40 

Musical 48 63 83 83 75 147 108 114 66 

Ballet 8 4 6 7 8 12 17 7 -1 

Opera 8 1 1 10 4 4 2 5 -3 

Spoken Word 8 0 3 6 6 4 3 8 0 

Drama 24 1 22 53 53 37 45 15 -9 

Dance 6 2 8 11 22 9 26 10 4 

Orchestral Concerts 4 5 5 2 2 2 2 1 -3 

New and World Music 4 0 2 1 2 0 0 0 -4 

Pantomime 54 50 39 38 38 39 40 39 -15 

Local Use - 34 28 23 17 30 32 34   

Total performances 292 294 344 384 429 434 434 406 114 

 
1.3 PERFORMANCE ANALYSIS 
Attendance is 6% above target (an increase of 3% on prior year). This is 8% above the UK Theatre average capacity in 2017. 
 
Our most successful shows were The Band which reached a fantastic 83% capacity and Benidorm Live which reached 89%.  
 
OTD’s programming strategy of scheduling approximately three weekly productions per month and the fourth week split to 
secure the best one night performances in Dartford continues to work.    

 
 
1.4 TARGET ATTENDANCE 

Indicator Target 13/14 14/15 15/16 16/17 17/18 18/19 Variance 
to target 

# of tickets sold to 
DBC residents 

40% of bookers 85,713 
(41%) 

89,654 
(42%) 

110,709 
(45%) 

150,772 
(61%) 

 

92,968 
(60%) 

141,301 
(60%) 

 

+20% 

Average capacity sold 
per performance 

57% 57% 61% 61% 64% 60% 63% +6% 

 

Page 22Agenda Item 9



 

5 

 

2. MARKETING & SALES ACTIVITY 
The publication of the Season Brochure three times per year remains the key marketing and Public Relations tool, producing 
a strong upsurge in sales when it hits.  This activity is complemented with full marketing and PR campaigns for each show, 
for example: 
 
General activity and local partnerships 

 We secured a partnership with Harden Holidays in Dartford, who provided us with a £1000 holiday to co-promote 
Benidorm live. In the few days following the launch we saw a large uplift in sales and Harden Holidays reported they 
had their best trading weekend since opening. 

 To promote Teletubbies Live further we hosted fun days over the two days they were here. This was a free event 
with a soft play area, a crafting area and free tea and coffee for adults. This was well received from adults and 
children alike. 

 Some of the theatre staff took part in a Calendar Girls inspired charity calendar to celebrate Calendar Girls the 
Musical coming to Dartford in March. The calendar received very positive feedback from the local press including 
being talked about on KMFM, front page on the Gravesend Reporter and an online piece on Kent Online – the 
calendar raised just under £1000 for Bloodwise. 

 This year we partnered with The Kut Hut to promote Hair the Musical – they gave us over £200 of prize value. 
 
Team Visits 

 We had a stand at Stone Festival and Dartford Festival in July, both a great success. We managed to giveaway 1000 
panto branded goodie bags with great feedback about our casting for Aladdin. 

 We worked with the town centre team on the Christmas Light Switch on plans and we secured Joe McFadden to 
turn on the lights.  
 

Database 
 Our database exceeded 136,000 contactable customers. 

 
Brochure activity 

 The autumn brochure was signed off and hit doormats in early September. We increased the local distribution of 
this brochure from 10,000 to 15,000. We saw a great uplift in sales as a result. We also trialled some royal mail door 
to door distribution (6000 brochures) for the first time, targeting homes in DA13 a postcode area where we feel 
there is potential. 

 Our spring 2019 brochure landed in the first week of January, the response was encouraging with good sales each 
week following its arrival. For this brochure, we increased our external distribution once again. We will look at some 
new ways of distributing via royal mail on our April brochure. 

 The next season brochure came out at the end of April and we trialed 10k being mailed with a new royal mail 
service which targets people that are not on our database but live in the same road as our top bookers. 

 
Groups and business club 

 In April, the Business Club added three new members; Fox Estates, Fairfield Leisure & Social Matrix. Business Club 
had its first event for 2018 on the opening night of Some Mothers Do A Em in May. We had two new members join 
from this; Harden Holidays and Downton & Ali. 

 
Premiere Cards 

 Our Premiere Card memberships increased each month, and our current number is 3622, which is the highest in the 
HQ group. 62% of these are now signed up to renew through direct debit. 

 
Online sales 

 We have been measuring our website visits and conversion rates and we are doing well within the HQ group, with 
over 93k visitors to website in November 2018. 4.2% of these made a transaction. 

 Our annual online sales ended at 65%.  
 
Pantomime  

 In May we announced our panto star, Marti Pellow on Facebook live – getting over 29,000 views. The response was 
very good and we saw a very impressive lift in sales as a result. 

 The Pantomime sales continued to be up on last year following the announcement of Marti Pellow. All feedback has 
been positive. We promoted pantomime at the Dartford Festival. 

Page 23 Agenda Item 9



 

6 

 

 From September our Pantomime campaign kicked off, with Bus adverts in the local area. October saw an increase in 
outdoor presence.  

 Aladdin was our focus for December – the department worked on some post-show analysis and reported the 
findings. Due to a large pantomime being cancelled in Maidstone just a few days after we opened, we concentrated 
some marketing activity in this area with the aim to increase attendance. 

 The next years pantomime, Peter Pan went on sale in December and very quickly sold, over 7500 tickets already. 
 
Social Media 

 Our social media saw a boost this year hitting over 20k likes on Facebook, 1600 followers on Instagram and 6150 
followers on Twitter. 

 We stepped up our usage of features such as Facebook Live and instastories. 

 We held a social media takeover for International Beatles Week to promote Let It Be – this saw lots of fun and 
interactive engagement including staff recreating iconic Beatles album covers and Charlie, our Stage Door 
Supervisor performing a Bealtes medley on Facebook Live. 

 We trialled Youtube advertising for shows that have good video trailers… this includes Let It Be and Aladdin. 

 Due to the level of activity we had on Facebook, we assigned an account manager who will advised on getting the 
best out of our advertising with them.  
 

Media coverage 

 Fat Friends featured on BBC South East Today with interviews with Sam Bailey and Jodie Prenger.  

 Following the open dress rehearsal event, BBC South East Today aired an interview with Gary Barlow and Tim Firth 
about Calendar Girls which saw a boost in sales. 

 BBC South East attended to film for The House on Cold Hill, interviews with Rita Simmons and Joe McFadden took 
place and aired the same night. 

 
Public Relations  

 Exclusive Benidorm announcement with Kent Messenger in the main paper.  

 Rave reviews for Spamalot including 5 stars from Reviews Hub.  

 Panto announcement – featured online with Kent Online and Encore Radio.  

 Gangsta Granny – featured in all local print papers, including a full page spread in the News Shopper, with spotlight 
on Millie, the local dancer chosen to perform in the show.  

 Some nice press for the one nighters – Little Mix Experience and Best of Wham had print coverage in the Reporter 
Series and Dreamboys had coverage from Kent Online.  

 Lovely reviews for Beautiful, only three as a sold-out show but all very complimentary.  

 Feature piece with Derren Brown in the Dartford Messenger ahead of his show.  

 Bring Your Own Baby Comedy received nice profiles in The Reporter and online. 

 Son of a Preacher Man had a full page in The Reporter along with several reviews. 

 Dinosaur World Live received three highly positive reviews, including from the Kent Messenger. 

 The Gravesend Reporter published a preview (online and in print) of the Jackson Live concert one-night show that is 
coming to us at the end of August. 

 As it was announced officially that the Benidorm TV series was ending, we received some mentions in online articles 
about where you can catch the stage show. 

 We received several mentions in other online publications (Broadway World, British Theatre, London Theatre 1) 
about various musicals and one-nighter tours stating our dates. 

 An interview with Ray Quinn was published in The Reporter for the musical Summer Holiday. 

 Flawless received some coverage in the local papers as well as online with Kent Online.  

 An interview with Joe Pasquale went into the Kent Messenger and Dartford Living as well as online.  

 Summer Holiday received good reviews from local bloggers as well as Dartford Living magazine. The press night was 
attended by six critics. 

 RnB Revival and Dracula: The Bloody Truth were featured in the main section of the Dartford Messenger paper as 
well as the What’s On supplement. 
Several parent bloggers did preview posts and reviews for Little Baby Bum and provided a lot of social media 
surrounding the show. 

 We received a lot of coverage with the national announcement of the new Priscilla tour, produced by Jason 
Donovan, which will be opening at The Orchard Theatre. We were mentioned in The Stage as well as many other 
online news sources. The announcement of The House on Cold Hill tour also mentioned us as the opening venue 
and was covered by Whatsonstage among others. 

Page 24Agenda Item 9



 

7 

 

 There was a piece about Jane McDonald in the Kent Messenger What’s On supplement about her sell-out show at 
The Orchard Theatre. 

 Dirty Dancing received a great deal of coverage including pieces in the Kent Messenger and The Reporter series. The 
press night on Monday 1 October had one of the highest attendances of the year and the show received ten 
positive reviews. 

 Let It Be also attracted a great deal of press coverage, including several online articles and newspaper entries along 
with some reviews. 

 We worked with two local parent bloggers to create preview posts for Milkshake Live and they did some great social 
media coverage of the show on the day. 

 Case of the Frightened Lady gained lot of preview coverage, especially with the Kent Messenger 

 Aladdin was included in several Kent pantomime round-ups, both online and in print including Kent Messenger and 
Inside Kent. An interview with Ricky K (Wishee Washee) and David Robbins (Widow Twankey) was also published in 
The Reporter paper and Theatre South East (online). Aladdin was also mentioned on Chris Moyles’ breakfast show 
on Radio X. 

 We had lots of parent bloggers come to see Stick Man and give plenty of positive reviews for the show 

 Rock of Ages gained lot of coverage both before and after the show including lots of great reviews. 

 Peter James conducted an interview with BBC Radio Kent about the House on Cold Hill. It was played out on the arts 
show on 28 November and repeated again later in the week. 

 Joe McFadden was confirmed to appear in Priscilla when it opens with us in September. 

 The Band featured in large editorial pieces in all the main local titles including KM. 

 

3. COMMUNITY & EDUCATION ACTIVITY 

OTD works hard to create a full creative and community programme.  Activity this year included:- 

New initiatives 

 In April we hosted ‘Bounce’.  This was a soft play, bouncy castle daytime flat floor event to utilise the space before 
setting up for Tropicana Nights. It was incredibly popular and there are some operational areas improve on for next 
time. 

 Saplings was a new idea for a drama group for ages under 5 years. Unfortunately, it did not have the take up we 
expected and therefore ended after the second term.  

 A grant through Dartford Big Local was awarded to the theatre for a new ukulele club, which started in November. It 
now has 2 classes as they became very popular.   

 
Returning initiatives - Young Writers, Choir and OYT Drama, Mind  

 We had our first young writer’s event.  The group was invited to a talk about writing a review and then we had lunch 
and watched Sing Along Beauty and the Beast. 

 The Orchard Choir is still going strong with new members joining each week. 

 Orchard Theatre Drama (previously known as Orchard Youth Theatre) has been placed on pause while Terri sources 
a permanent venue. 

 ‘Mind’ end of term performance of a devised piece of fairytale therapy was thoroughly enjoyed by all participants.  
Drama Therapy Group has got off to a good start with 6 members. 

 
Local partnerships  

 We are now working in partnership with ‘Play On’ to provide school workshops and holiday workshops.  

 The Community Performance Platform in January was great success. 8 dance schools, 9 dances and transition pieces.  
Everyone enjoyed the evening and we had an audience of 450. 

 
Summer Youth Project 

 The year’s Summer Youth Project the ‘Wizard of Oz’, showcased the amazing talents of 146 children and 10 technical 
placements.  Every night ended with a standing ovation and a wonderful was time had by all involved! 

 SYP students performed at Dartford festival which was well received. 
 

Work Experience  

 A work experience candidate will be joining the technical team during dark week to learn technical maintenance. 

 5 interviews took place for work experience students and 2 young people have joined on work experience placement 
 

Page 25 Agenda Item 9



 

8 

 

Theatre Fun days and Open House 

 Another successful year of half term fun days packed with participants.  

 September’s Open House saw 300 people through the door.  
 
Charity fundraising  

 We continued to have bucket collections at various performances throughout the year.  

 The charity staff calendar raised over £1,000 for Blood Wise.  

 The Front of House team was very pleased to be able to support Great Ormond Street Hospital with charity bucket 
collections throughout the Pantomime run with a total of £12K raised! 

 Staff participated in various fundraising events including cake sales, quizzes and the highlight of the year was when 
six employees completed the Tough Mudder South East obstacle course raising over £4k for GOSH.    

 
And also… 
OTD continues to play a central and active role in the local community, for example:  

 Attending the Town Centre Board meetings and getting involved in the arts and cultural meeting discussions.  

 Sponsoring the Dartford Festival. 

 Allowing the Met Police Dogs to use the building for training. 

 
4. FRONT OF HOUSE 

Highlights included 

 A number of successful Tropicana Nights were held in the Auditorium throughout the year.  

 The whole Hospitality management team attended Food Safety Level 3 training (a three day course for catering managers), 
in Bromley. 

 The new menu changed each season and launched first to the team and then the public with positive responses each time. 
Feedback on more vegan and health options were taken on board and then added.  

 We introduced order to your seat with the pre order app, which continues to be used. The marketing team is still working 
on advertising to gain more customers using.  

 The Theatre held twelve Tea and Tours throughout the year – participants were given a backstage tour and informed 
about the set, costumes and technical requirements– followed by afternoon tea! 

 The hospitality team also trialled a new event at the theatre – Bring Your Own Baby Comedy.  This is an event for mums 
with babies to enjoy some daytime stand-up comedy with their little ones. We received excellent feedback from 
attendees, many of whom said they would definitely book again for the next one! We have continued wo book in.  

 As part of our commitment to joining the Sustainable Restaurant Association, in June we began separating our food waste 
which is collected and taken to be composted on a weekly basis. We also changed our coffee cup supplier to ensure that 
all our paper coffee cups are now recyclable. We have installed new recycling bins within the foyer so that all our coffee 
and plastic cups are separated and recycled. 

 Two new events held in the restaurant were; Sounds Familiar Music Quiz and Sunday lunch with the Stars and were well 
received.   

 Christmas parties sold out almost every dining event we held and were a huge success.  

 We held a successful flat floor gig on Friday 29th March with local band Proto Stereo headlining the evening. 

 
5. ACCESS 
 A signed performance of Fat Friends was held on Wednesday 11th April at 7.30pm. 

 An audio described performance of Spamalot was held on Thursday 26th April at 7.30pm. 

 An audio described performance of Son of a Preacher Man was held on Thursday 28th June. 

 The Teletubbies decided to run their show in a relaxed style allowing children to use phones / tablet inside, creating a soft 
play area in the restaurant space and keeping the house lights up. The majority of parents appreciated the relaxed 
performing style.  

 November we had a signed performance of Rock of Ages.  

 The relaxed performance for Aladdin was a success.  House lights stayed on and the auditorium doors were open.  Big 
bangs and scary effects were kept to a minimum. 

 There was also a signed and audio described performance for Aladdin.   

 We held an Audio Described performance on the final Saturday matinee of Calendar Girls with a Touch Tour pre-show 
where customers were introduced to cast members and talked through the set by the Deputy Stage Manager. 

Page 26Agenda Item 9



 

9 

 

6. CUSTOMER FEEDBACK 
 During the year OTD received both positive and negative feedback from customers.  The majority of complaints were 

regarding other customers disturbing their performance and the majority of compliments were thanking the staff very 
similar pattern to the prior year.  

 Some complaints were received regarding the Bounce event which was a new event trialled at the theatre. The main 
issues raised were the lack of gap between the sessions, long queues at each bouncy castle and mixed age groups using 
the same bouncy castles. 

 Some negative feedback following a Fire Evacuation that took place over Benidorm, in regards to meals in the restaurant 
being disturbed. Most have accepted to come back to the restaurant at another show through the year. In the same 
instance we have also received 2 comments commending how the fire evacuation was conducted efficiently and 
impressed that the show still went up more or less on time. 

 Champions of Rock - over 60 written complaints as it was a Meatloaf act in the first half which was not advertised. Refunds 
given to those who wrote in.  Despite the complaints received regarding this performance many patrons praised the 
theatre for our customer service when dealing with the problem and for responding promptly and with an offer of refund. 

 A couple of complaints were received for the restricted view seats on the Beautiful show. 

 Fantastic feedback from this year’s Summer Youth Project of the Wizard of Oz from both customers and participants alike.  

 Pantomime feedback is mostly positive although there are a small number of attendees throughout the month that have 
come back with comments regarding the effects within the pantomime are too loud and scary for smaller children.  

7. BUILDINGS & PREMISES 
The property is kept in good condition with monthly maintenance carried out by the contractor Aster Maintenance Ltd, who 
maintain the building plant and infrastructure.  Day to day maintenance is carried out by the in-house Maintenance Assistant, 
who helps keep the building in a good and safe condition. 
 

 A fault was identified with the Main Sprinkler Valve triggering Fire Alarm – Works undertaken to replace all internal seals.  

 Flooding in plant room during torrential rain – This was caused by the drain pipes being blocked by the drain mesh covers.  
Now they are unblocked and free flowing. 

 Blake Fire & Security Systems undertook an annual Fire Alarm service. 

 Routine Maintenance has been undertaken to the Air Con & Ventilation Systems. 

 Introland fitting additional hand railing to fly floor following last health and safety audit. 

 Annual Inspections of the Lightning Protection was undertaken by Southern Lightning Protection. 

 Annual Ventilation Service was undertaken by Aster Maintenance. 

 Annual Service visits were undertaken for the Fire Alarm Panel & Intruder Alarm Panel. 

 Legionella Checking & Chlorination was undertaken by Aquavent. 

8. HEALTH & SAFETY 
OTD uses the services of R&B Health and Safety Solutions to support it in its aim to provide a safe environment for employees, 
visitors and customers. Regular workplace assessments are carried out by the consultancy with a full report issued.  The H&S 
programme included: 
 

 RB attended the theatre on 29th May for the full inspection and audit. They were very pleased with the low number of 
recommended actions and no major actions reported.  

 Ross Bibby and Zelda Kitto have passed their IOSH Managing Safely for Theatres qualification.    

 Fire awareness training in house conducted. 

 External Noise awareness and asbestos training conducted. 

 Construction and Design Management course for the Technical manager and deputy. 

 Emma and Randa (Stage Door) have qualified in Emergency 1st Aid At Work.   

 Fire Marshall Training was provided by RB Health and Safety to 11 members of staff.  

 In-house courses in Fire awareness, COSHH, Manual handling and Ladder safety were completed for all causal technicians.    

 A volunteers evening was held with training in Fire Awareness, Manual handling, Sales through Service and a fire drill.  

9. TRAINING 
 The whole Hospitality management team attended Food Safety Level 3 training (a three day course for catering managers), 

in Bromley. 

 Stuart Collyer attended IOSH Working Safely for Theatres. 

 Ross, Charlie, Suzie and Stuart attended RB Risk Assessment training.   

Page 27 Agenda Item 9



 

10 

 

 Multiple staff attended Conflict and Difficult Conversations training with HQT&H 

 We continue to hire additional security for those shows we consider a high risk. 

10. HUMAN RESOURCES 
 A pay review has taken place to ensure compliancy with NMW increases 

 Fit and Fab Week took place to promote health and wellbeing in the workplace.  Activities included a Mindfulness 
workshop, Pilates, litter picking and Spanish lessons. 

 Reviews of policies and practices to ensure we are adhering to new GDPR law.   

 The company HR Manager undertook an internal audit on our HR practices.  We scored well with some simple action 
points for the future.   

 We worked with Investors In People to gain the next standard level, ‘Developed’. Feedback was that the staff were very 
engaging, proud to work here and offered constructive points for the future.  We will work with Andy over the next year 
on an action plan of improvements. 

 Rebecca and Lorna attended a Change Management course through UK Theatre.  It was insightful and gave some useful 
learning tools for the future.  

 Senior Managers attended a 2hr workshop on ‘How to Conduct an Investigation’.   

 Kay Hadley (Senior Marketing Officer) attended the Company’s new pilot Management Training Plan, facilitated by Impact 
Factory.   
 

11. PERSONNEL UPDATE 
 Following Jan Kimber’s retirement (after 32 years at the Orchard), Matthew Holt has been appointed to the role of Ticket 

Office Manager.   

 Chris Vella (Ticket Office Assistant at Bromley) stepped into the role as Matt’s deputy.   

 Bradley Cox has been appointed to the permanent post of Ticket office Assistant. 

 Suzie Burkett left her role as Hospitality General Manager, Michael Old was appointed as her replacement. 

 Rebecca Stevens left the role of Administration Manager, her replacement is Hayley Rossiter-Poulton who has extensive 
admin experience. 
 

The management team 2018/19 consisted of: 

 Theatre Director (Programming) – Chris Glover  

 Associate Theatre Director – Lorna Strawson from October 2017 

 Administration Manager – Rebecca Stevens 

 Marketing Manager – Jamie Leadbeatter 

 Ticket Office Manager  - Matt Holt 

 Deputy General Manager  –  Suzie Burkett / Michael Old 

 Hospitality Manager – Lauren Greening 

 Hospitality Manager - Zelda Kitto 

 Technical & Buildings Manager – Will West 
 

12. FINANCIAL 

 As per Schedule Two, a full set of Statutory Accounts has been included as an addendum to this report. 
 

 
 
Lorna Strawson 
Theatre Director 
October 2019 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 28Agenda Item 9



 

11 

 

APPENDIX 1: ORCHARD THEATRE PROGRAMME DETAIL BY MONTH: 2018-2019 

APRIL 
 This month has seen an eclectic mix of one nighters to suit all audiences and we opened with An Evening with Brian 

Blessed.  Billed as ‘not suitable for those with a nervous disposition!’ Brian had the audience captured with anecdotes 
from his long career which includes Black Adder and Z Cars.   

 There was a variety of music this month.  Beyond The Barricade returned with their ‘Musical Concert Tour’; The Hollies 
played to yet another sold out audience; Gilbert O’Sullivan delighted Dartford audiences with his new tour; and finally the 
ever popular Russell Watson performance to a packed house with his new show ‘Canzoni d’Amore’. 

 Family audiences enjoyed Sing-A-Longa Beauty and the Beast with the now standard fancy dress competition for 
Dartford’s Disney Princesses to showcase themselves! 

 Kay Mellor’s Fat Friends the Musical was our first week long musical this month.  Starring a cast of hugely talented folks 
including Sam Bailey and Jodie Prenger the show was packed full of warmth, love and weight loss!  All new music by Nick 
Lloyd Webber had audiences on their feet each and every night.  

 DAOD’s returned for their first visit of 2018 with West Side Story.  The show was hugely popular with busy audiences and 
tells the timeless love story of Tony and Maria in 1950’s New York.  The week showcased some of Dartford’s finest local 
talent with favourites such as ‘America’ and ‘Tonight’.   

 We closed the month with Monty Python’s Spamalot.  Lovingly ripped off from ‘The Holy Grail’, this award winning musical 
had Python fans rolling in the aisles and a final sing along to ‘Always Look on the Bright Side of Life!‘   

 Sadly Russell Brand’s ‘RE: Birth’ performance was cancelled as his Mother was involved in a serious road traffic accident.  
We are hoping to re-schedule this date as soon as possible but as it stands the full tour is cancelled.   

 
MAY 
 The cast of Dear Zoo opened the month bringing the popular young children’s classic to the stage.   

 David Baddiel and Sarah Millican independently delighted audiences with their near sell out comedy performances 

 There were many ever popular returning one nighers of music including Shalamar, Rumours of Fleetwood Mac and Elkie 
Brooks.  Let’s Hang On brought the music of Frankie Valli and the Four Seasons; Legend : The Music of Bob Marley proved 
very popular and a new show Walk Right Back celebrating the music of the Everley Brothers was hugely successful.  That’ll 
be the Day also returned with a chance to see its latest and ‘most popular’ show!  

 Other one night shows included the beautiful Madama Butterfly and for strictly lovers Pasha Kovalev with ‘The Magic of 
Hollywood’.   

 Our first week long show of the month starred the hilarious Joe Pasquale in a re-telling of the classic 1970’s ‘Some Mother’s 
Do Ave Em’.  Audiences roared with laughter at this slapstick delight! 

 Next the Rat Pack was back with Ella Fitzgerald in Rat Pack Live from Las Vegas.  Direct from the West End ‘Frank’, ‘Sammy’ 
and guest sang hit after hit including Mr Bojangles and Mack the Knife.   

 David Walliams’ Gangsta Granny delighted families and school groups alike with this award winning show.  Granny has a 
secret and Friday nights are about to get more exciting than you could ever imagine…….You’ll never look at your Granny 
in the same way again!  

 We closed the month with a sell-out performance of Jools Holland and his Rhythm and Blues Band.   

 

JUNE 
 The Month opened with the very funny and popular Daliso Chaponda who was Amanda Holden’s Golden Buzzer act from 

Britain’s Got Talent 2017. The Malawian Born stand-up was a stand-out star on the show last year with over 8 million 
Facebook views. 

 Other comedy presented in June was the return of Brian Conley’s - Still the Greatest Entertainer in His Price Range. 
Featuring brand new comedy Sketches and songs.   

 The highlight of the month has to be the outstanding Olivier and Tony Award winning Beautiful. The entire week had 
packed out audiences with barely a spare seat in the house. Beautiful tells the story of Kings remarkable rise to stardom, 
from being part of a hit song-writing team with her husband Gerry Goffin, to her relationship with fellow writers and best 
friends Cynthia Weil and Barry Mann, to becoming one of the most successful solo acts in popular music history.  

 20th Century Boy followed in June providing the Orchard with a celebration of Bolan and Bowie. Featuring some of the 
greatest hits from the 70’s, including Get It On, I Love to Boogie, Ride a White Swan and Tainted Love. Nominated for the 
Best New Musical (Manchester Theatre Awards), 20th Century Boy is a glam rock at its best. 

 Direct from the West End, Derren Brown bought us his show Underground for three shows over two days. The multi-
award-winning master of mind control, amazed and enthralled our audiences who left the theatre completely 
gobsmacked! 

 The return of the Little Mix Experience proved ever popular with our family audience performing their high energy show.  

Page 29 Agenda Item 9



 

12 

 

 As always there were many ever popular returning one nighters of music including Champions of Rock – The Supreme 
Queen Concert, the mega mix tribute of the 80’s pop sensation - The Best Of Wham, The legacy that is Abba was covered 
with Thank You For The Music, and the 60’s nostalgia trip with Bringing on Back the 60’s.  

 Unfortunately, Callas – the life and music of Maria Callas that was scheduled for the 10th June was cancelled due to the 
entire tour pulling out.  

 We ended the month with the must see musical Son of a Preacher Man starring Michelle Gayle and Alice Barlow. 

 
JULY 
 The Month opened with the return of the Royal Philharmonic Orchestra 2018 season with An Afternoon at the Ballet 

presented by the esteemed Nathan Fifield.  

 The majority of the month was taken up with both full weeks, split weeks and one nights of local dance and drama schools. 
All bought loyal enthusiastic audiences with them who filled up the auditorium., Schools such as Bird College who’s 500+ 
students roamed our hallways (not at the same time), Reynolds Training Academy and Performing Arts school, and Silveras 
School were a few returning shows. New school such as Knights Academy proved successful and have already asked for a 
return date next year.  

 After the maintenance week, we introduced Bing Live! and his magical world of make believe to the stage. Many family’s 
from Dartford and the surrounding area flocked to see the bunny in action.  

 The month ended with live music from The Real Thing, Heatwave and Odyssey, Be Bop a Lu La and Dave Finnegan’s The 
Commitments. All shows were well attended and entertained audiences.  

 

AUGUST 
 We started the month with Dinosaur World an hour long production filled with impressive pre-historic creatures including 

a flesh easting Tyrannosaurs Rex. Customers had the chance to meet and greet. With the animals after the show which 
went down extremely well with the curious families.  

 The month was stolen by the incredible production of Wizard of Oz performed by over 130 community strong cast. The 
talent of these young people is unreal and the direction and instruction from the creative team really bought out the best 
in all of them. With a real life Toto, flying members of the cast and even including pyrotechnics, this year’s production was 
certainly worth the wait. Considering they only rehearsed for two weeks, the entire production was of such quality that it 
would give a West End show a run for its money! 

 The second half of the month ended with a string of one night productions including music from the X Factor winner Sam 
Bailey who’s return show proved ever popular.  

 Music included the return of Fast Love, the unforgettable evening of George Michael favourites; Sun Records, where rock 
and Roll was born giving you songs from the likes of Elvis Presley and Jerry Lee Lewis; The Greatest Hits of Motown, 
combining first class music with slick choreography; Jackson Live, with the well-respected and dedicated Michael Jackson 
tribute performer ‘CJ’; The Drifters, back on the road with the last 6 decades of hits and lastly the Johnny Cash Roadshow, 
fronted by respected singer/songwriter ‘Clive John.’ 

 The children show of the month was Teletubbies with a show full of love and laughter in the magical world of 
Teletubbyland. 

 
SEPTEMBER 
 This month’s musical offering was ‘Summer Holiday’ starring Ray Quinn.  It was a really fun and fresh production with Ray 

offering a stand out performance with fantastic dance moves and singing numbers. Every audience member enjoyed a 
welcome sing along to some Cliff Richards classics! 

 The National Gilbert and Sullivan Company performed three separate productions this month, ‘Iolanthe’; ‘Pirates of 
Penzance’; ‘Trial By Jury and The Sorcerer’.  There was high acclaim and this year it was extra special as the company were 
celebrating their 25th anniversary.   

 Comedy lovers enjoyed the ever warm and silly voice of Joe Pasquale with ‘A Few of His Favourite Things’ gig.  And at the 
end of the month the ‘Gag House Comedy Superstars’ brought performances from Jen Brister and Larry Dean, with the 
popular Lee Nelson headlining.    

 A variety of musical tributes were performed this month.  New to Dartford was ‘Wannabe’, a homage to the Spice Girls 
that was so popular we added a matinee performance!  Also, the return of popular shows, ‘The Simon and Garfunkel Story’ 
and ‘That’ll Be The Day’.   

 Star of stage and screen Jane McDonald was back in Dartford delighting audiences again with her sold out show.   

 Horrible Histories returned to the Orchard, this time with ‘Terrible Tudors Awful Egyptians’.  Young customers were thrilled 
with the gruesome history lessons on stage! 

Page 30Agenda Item 9



 

13 

 

 Comedy drama came in the form of two very different productions this month.  ‘An Evening With Eric and Ern’ was full of 
wonderful routines and gigs from the much loved Morecambe and Wise whilst ‘Dracula The Bloody Truth’, took us on a 
journey from Transylvania to Whitby and into the depths of the supernatural! 

 Street dancing pros and Britain’s Got Talent alumni ‘Flawless’ came to Dartford for the first time. They wowed audiences 
with their incredible routines and base thumping music.   

 To close the month we stepped into the magical and colourful world of ‘Little Baby Bum’.  Very young audiences loved the 
premiere of this live show taken from the YouTube sensation that has over 20 billion views.   

 
OCTOBER 
 The month started with the return of the ultimate experience of Dirty Dancing - the classic story on stage. Full of passion 

and romance, heart-pounding music and sensationally sexy dancing, the production was extremely well received by all.  

 We welcomed a week of Top Hat performed by DAODS with all the tap-dancing magic of Fred Astaire and Ginger Rogers. 
Packed full of Irving Berlin’s greatest hits including Cheek to Cheek, Top Hat and of course Puttin’ on the Ritz, Top Hat told 
the story of a Broadway star Jerry Travers who dances across Europe to win the heart of Dale Tremont. 

 Let it Be played the venue jam packed with all the iconic music of The Beatles. Direct from the West End, the international 
show celebrated the legacy of the world’s greatest rock ‘n’ roll band. We relived the Beatles’ meteoric rise from their 
humble beginnings to the heights of Beatlemania. Classic tracks such as Twist and Shout, She Loves You as well as the 
global mega hit Hey Jude filled the stage as audiences cheered and applauded. 

 The Manfreds and Georgie Fame hit the Orchard stage on the 21st October with their Maximum Rhythm n’ Blues show. 
This nostalgic show played some one the greatest hits including 5-4-3-2-1, Do Wah Diddy, The Mighty Quinn, Get Away 
and many more.  

 A sold out show Rip it Up included dancing and singing through the 60’s. Strictly Come Dancing champions Harry Judd and 
Louis Smith MBE as well as Aston Merrygold toured together as the ultimate boy band of dance!  

 One nighters returned such as The Matt Monroy Story with the unique evening of music, The world-class comedian 
Jimeoin with his sell out tour, the renowned psychic Sally Morgan and Foster and Allen who celebrated over 40 years in 
music.  

 Two performances of Milkshake! Live satisfied our family audiences and sold extremely well including favourites such as 
Shimmer and Shine, Fireman Sam and the Milkshake! Monkey.  

 The month ended with the author of War Horse Michael Morpurgo’s Private Peaceful performance by Scamp Theatre. 
Commemorating the 100th year anniversary of the end of World War One, the show relives the life of Private Tommo 
Peaceful, a young soldier awaiting the firing squad at dawn. The Scotsman described it as ‘the horrors of war and the 
joyfulness of life are bound up together in this magnificent show.’ 

 

NOVEMBER 
 The month began with a number of one nighters starting with Foster and Allan celebrating over 40 years together in music. 

Their style and easy listening sound remains as fresh and exciting as ever.  

 Roy Wood’s Rock and Roll Band was an evening packed with hits including Flowers in the Rain, Fire Brigade and I can hear 
the Grass Grow. The two legend of television Des O’Conner and Jimmy Tarbuck joined us on stage for this rare event 
accompanied by music and video to entertain the audience.  

 This is the Greatest Show had a packed out audience and featured songs from The Greatest Showman, Moulin Rouge and 
Barnum.  

 Further shows in the month included; the return of The Whitney Houston Show which played to a full nostalgic audience; 
Henning Wehn, the German comedy ambassador; 10cc, celebrating 40 years of hits; The Sensational 60’s, the largest 60’s 
show on tour; a talk show with historian Neil Oliver; and The Carpenters Story featuring the vocal talents of Claire Furley 

 A brand new cast was announced for the tour of The Classic Thriller Company’s The Case Of The Frightened Lady by Edgar 
Wallace, led by the talented stage and TV star, John Partridge. John Partridge, who is best known to TV audiences as the 
suave and charismatic Christian Clarke in EastEnders, lead a star cast in the role of Inspector Tanner. He was joined 
by Deborah Grant, who has starred in Not Going Out and Bergerac; Robert Duncan, best known for Drop The Dead 
Donkey; Phillip Lowrie, best known for playing Dennis Tanner in Coronation Street; Scarlett Archer from Emmerdale; 
and Matt Barber from Downton Abbey. Building on the phenomenal decade-long success of The Agatha Christie Company, 
which sold over two million tickets around the UK, the Classic Thriller Company has produced hits including adaptations 
from Ruth Rendell and Levison & Link, the writers of Murder She Wrote.  

 The very last tour of The Richard Alston Dance Company joined us mid-November which celebrated Richards 50 years of 
dance and choreography. The evening centre around Mid Century Modern and was a journey through each decade of his 
career.  

 The Roayl Philharmonic played classical music to the audiences of Dartford for its biannual visit. Tchaikovsky’s Forth 
Symphony followed the esteemed maestro Michele Mariottis performance with Leticia Moreno on the violin.  

Page 31 Agenda Item 9



 

14 

 

 The Ukulele Orchestra of Great Britain played the Orchard for the first time with a good house. The global sensation have 
risen form village hall to the Royal Albert Hall.  

 Rock of Ages, the LA love story lavished with over 25 classic rock anthems joined us for a week in November. 
Starring Danielle Hope as ‘Sherrie’, Sam Ferriday as ‘Stacee Jaxx’, Kevin Kennedy as ‘Dennis’, Zoe Birkett as ‘Justice’, Luke 
Walsh as ‘Drew’, Lucas Rush as ‘Lonny’, Andrew Carthy as ‘Franz’, Vas Constanti as ‘Hertz’ and Rhiannon Chesterman as 
‘Regina’. This hilarious musical comedy had the audience singing and laughing along with its epic songs, including We Built 
This City, The Final Countdown, Here I Go Again, Can’t Fight this Feeling and I Want To Know What Love Is played loud and 
proud by an awesome live band. Now a global smash with hit seasons on Broadway, London’s West End and Las Vegas 
and a star-studded Hollywood movie version, we delivered a night of outrageous rock ‘n’ roll debauchery at the biggest 
party in town!  

 The month ended with Julia Donaldson’s Stick Man, the award-winning production featuring a trio of top actors, puppetry, 
songs, live music and funky moves. Followed by A Beautiful Noise, the award winning Fisher Stevens celebrating the life 
and music of Neil Diamond. The return of the Illegal Eagles, the world’s no1 Eagles tribute band. And finally, the Dreamboys 
who excited audiences with their hotter than ever performance featuring Jake Quickenden, winner of Dancing on Ice 
2018.  

 

DECEMBER 
 The Belvedere Concert Band delighted audiences at The Magic of Christmas, this year in aid of Cancer Research UK.  

 That’ll Be The Day Christmas Special returned with another near sold out show celebrating the 50’s, 60’s and 70’s.  

 Buddy Holly and the Cricketers at Christmas were back with Holly’s hits and some Christmas classics.   

 Aladdin opened to great press reviews.  Marti Pellow  proved to be very popular with Dartford audiences.  The effects, 
particularly the magic carpet, were magical caused much enjoyment for young and old!  Sales for 2019’s pantomime, Peter 
Pan are doing incredibly well already. 

 
JANUARY 
 The month started with Some Guys have all the Luck, a show which celebrated the life and career of Rod Stewart. The 

show includes massive hits such as Maggie May and You’re in My Heart.  

 The return of the annual Adult panto went down a treat with the Dartford audience with their raunchy plots and blatant 
sexual innuendos, they have taken the traditional fairy story tale and corrupted it beyond belief.  

 The music genre was plentiful in January with the Elvis Years celebrating the life and times of the king himself, Fastlove, 
which sold out to a George Michael fan club audience putting the ‘Boom Boom into their heart’, The Classic Rock Show, 
from ACDC to ZZ and everything in between, this show celebrated classic rock albums from various artists, The Ronnie 
Scotts All Stars, the 60th anniversary of one of the world’s most iconic music venues, Frankly Sinatra, direct from Las Vegas 
an unmissable evening with Stephen Triffitt, The ELO Experience, the world’s foremost tribute to the Electric Light 
Orchestra and 80’s Mania, featuring 25 of the Chart-topping hits form pop stars including Wham, Culture Club and 
Madness.  

 A new music act for January was Viva La Coldplay, a cold play tribute band who celebrated the music and featured Big at 
6 and the Castells as their support.  

 The week long musical production of Saturday Night Fever was enjoyed by audiences over the 8 performances. The 
Musical pays homage to the 1977 John Travolta classic, however this stage version delivered more drama, more music 
and hotter chorography. Tony Manero was played by Richard Winsor, the Casualty and Mathew Bourne’s dancer. 

 January saw the fourth premiere of the Peter James play The House on Cold Hill. This followed the sold out tour of Not 
Dead Enough and The Perfect Murder, Peter James is the top selling thriller author in the UK. BAFTA nominated actor and 
winner of BBC1’s Strictly Come Dancing 2017, Joe McFadden played the loving dad and husband of the Harcourt family 
with actress Rita Simons (Roxy Mitchell in EastEnders) as his loving wife. House on Cold Hill was a modern day thriller 
which sends shivers down your spine. 

 Jack Petchey, the community group who usually bring the awards ceremony each year, came to the theatre with The Glee 
Club Challenge. After a tough selection process, and a number of boot camps, this night saw the South London regional 
Final take place.  

 Lastly, the return of the Circus of Horrors, after taking to the road 22 years ago, the show toured round with its new show 
featuring bizarre and fantastic circus acts.  

 

FEBRUARY 
 The month started with Ben and Holly’s Little Kingdom. A live stage adaptation of the BAFTA award-winning children’s 

television animation featuring elves, princesses and childhood innocence which delighted all the family.  

Page 32Agenda Item 9



 

15 

 

 We had An Evening with Nigel Farage. Hosting the former UKIP MP up close and personal. An evening of laughter with 
funny stories and anecdotes went down well with the people of Dartford. 

 The Band graced the stage in a new musical by Tim Firth with the music of 90’s boy band sensation Take That. The week 
long musical production follows five women who were childhood friends. The group reunite after 25 years and try to fulfil 
their dream of meeting the boyband who’s music became the soundtrack to their lives. Along the way, they realise that 
life didn’t turn out how any of them had planned… 

 Hancock’s Half Hour redefined radio comedy and has had people laughing non-stop for the past 65 years. We were lucky 
enough to present three classic episodes of this show on our very own stage.   

 We had our favourite stars live on stage for the very first time! Benidorm Live. This new stage version of Darren Litten’s 
smash-hit ITV comedy received standing ovations. The award winning show celebrates over a decade of all-inclusive 
hilarity. Litten has now written an all new set of Alicante escapades for the much-loved cast members as they swap sangria 
for a week long holiday at The Orchard. 

 We welcomed back The Hairy Bikers for the first time in 6 years. An epic night of cooking and conversation. Big hearted, 
down to earth cooks with a love of good food and even a rocking sing along at the end.   

 We had some great musical acts over February. Starting with the Bowie Experience. A spectacular concert celebrating the 
sound and vision of David Bowie. Featuring all the hits from A to Ziggy. Next up we had the Magic of Motown, featuring 
40 back-to-back classic Motown hits, glittering costume changes, dazzling dance moves and outstanding musicianship. 
Lastly we Celebrate Country Music Royalty, Dolly Parton and Kenny Rogers with Islands in the Stream. Showcasing the 
beloved glamour and personality of Dolly, along with Kenny’s charisma and energy with hit after hit including: Jolene, 
Ruby, 9 to 5 and many more including the title track, Islands in the Stream. 

 Lastly, the adaptation of Jill Murphy’s beloved children’s books, The Worst Witch. We follow Mildred Hubble in her final 
year at a school for witches. Her fellow pupils and she embark on their biggest adventure yet. Emma Reeves’ adaptation 
now brings these stories to stage, featuring all of Jill Murphy’s beloved characters, original songs, music and magic. 
Mystical fun for the whole family! 

 
MARCH 
 The month started with a visit from the Calendar Girls, the award-winning production from Tim Firth and Gary Barlow. 

We were delighted to have the show for an epic two week run. A wonderful true story of a group of ordinary ladies who 
do something extraordinary! The billing included some fabulous household names, sadly not every star could be present 
for every show but nonetheless the show was well received and although there was the odd grumble, the feedback on 
the presentation itself was very positive. 

 We had Ben Fogle who was sharing his wilderness stories from around the globe – climbing Everest, dodging pirates, 
walking to the South Pole, rowing the Atlantic, swimming from Alcatraz…it’s fair to say the audience were entranced. Had 
there been a Q&A session it’s quite possible Ben may not have left the Orchard in good time that night. 

 The Solid Silver Sixties Show graced the stage mid-month with favourite Sixties musicians Peter Noone, Brian Poole and 
Dave Berry with Vanity Fare. It was a chance relive some fond memories with this slice of Sixties history showcasing some 
of the decades biggest artists performing their greatest hits. 

 Dr Michael Mosley imparted his medical wisdom in his quest to keep us all healthy, he was exploding health myths with 
actual science and personal testimony. He enthralled the audience with some fantastic personal stories and there as a 
good demonstration of testing his own methods. 

 Cirque Berserk did a fantastic 5 night run and at the start of the show the audience were actively encouraged to record 
and share their footage far and wide. An amazingly talented international group of performers consisting of over thirty 
jugglers, acrobats, aerialists and dancers plus the legendary motorcycle “Globe of Death”….What a show it was! 

 We welcomed back the Olivier-nominated Room on the Broom to Dartford following a successful worldwide tour. This 
musical, magical Tall Stories’ adaptation joined Witch and her cat on their mission to defeat the dragon whilst picking up 
some hitch hikers along the way except the broom wasn’t meant for 5….. The show was a perfect combination of songs, 
laughter and scary fun for the whole family. Customer feedback on the night was outstanding! 

 It’s always a pleasure to welcome comedy legend Jim Davidson back to the Orchard; his outrageous new show was well 
received with Jim sharing his unique blend of comedy and telling it “like it is”. He was here to tell us he’s fed up with the 
world being PC…and received a standing ovation for his efforts! 

 We closed the month with some fabulous music acts – Protostereo brought us the music of The Killers and Muse and was 
an open floor event - the atmosphere was truly electric! Back to the 70s and 80s with Rumours of Fleetwood Mac and 
Chicago Blues Brothers who brought us some classic numbers with plenty of singing to go with it. 

 
  

Page 33 Agenda Item 9



 

16 

 

APPENDIX 2: STATUTORY ACCOUNTS 

 

[separate documents] 

 

Page 34Agenda Item 9



Orchard Theatre Dartford Ltd - Profit Share at 31 March 2019

£'000 £'000

Profit before tax per stats 464

Add back management charge less actual contribution to central overheads 107

Capital expenditure including seating/rostra improvements -

Dartford BC contribution to seating/rostra improvements -

-

Net profit after capex, excluding stats management charge 571

Centrally-incurred admin costs (estimates):

Audit fee 8

Insurance 11

Telephones 12

IT support 16

(47)

Theatre Director bonus, recognised in HQ Theatres (5)

Loss on Education & Youth Project accounted for in HQ Theatres Trust (17)

Net profit after capex and centrally incurred costs 502

APPENDIX C
Page 35 Agenda Item 9



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 36



SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
12 November 2019 

 
 

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE ROLLING WORK PLAN 2019-20 

 

 
1. Summary 

 
To identify further items for inclusion in the Committee’s Rolling Work Plan 
for the remainder of the 2019–20 municipal year and to allocate a timeframe 
accordingly. 

 
2. RECOMMENDATION 
 

That the Committee considers the current Work Plan (attached as Appendix A 
to this report) and identifies further topics for inclusion as appropriate.  
 

 
3. Background and Discussion 
 
 
 3.1 The Scrutiny Committee’s Terms of Reference (ToRs) make provision 

for the Committee to approve an Annual Scrutiny Work Programme 
and to allocate a timeframe for its consideration in a Work Plan to be 
reviewed and updated at each meeting of the Committee. 
 

 3.2 In setting its own Work Programme and Plan [Appendix A attached] 
the Committee will take into account the minority interest views held 
by Members on the Committee. 
 

 3.3 The Work Programme as detailed in the Plan should ensure that there 
is efficient use of the Committee’s time and that the potential for 
duplication of effort is minimised, especially with regard to the remits 
of the Crime and Disorder (Overview & Scrutiny) and the Policy 
Overview Committees, as set out in their respective Committee 
Protocols.  
 

 3.4 In considering whether a particular topic or function should be 
included in the Committee’s Work Programme and Plan, Members 
need to be mindful of the following: 
 

(1) That the primary role of the Committee is to scrutinise 
decisions of the Cabinet that have either been taken or which are 
included in the Regulation 9 Notices for future consideration by 
Cabinet; 
(2) That although the nature of the scrutiny will generally dictate 
who participates in the discussion process, inviting participation 
by other councils to give their experiences is not a scrutiny 
function; but one for the Policy Overview Committee which 
undertakes the overview function; to better inform future policy 
options for the Council; 

Page 37 Agenda Item 10



SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
12 November 2019 

 
 

  

 
(3) That discussions on policy statements also fall to the Policy 
Overview Committee to consider who hold the overview function, 
not the Scrutiny Committee; and  
(4) That matters relating to crime and disorder, including anti-
social behaviour (ASB) and Community Safety, fall within the 
remit of the Crime and Disorder (Overview & Scrutiny) 
Committee. 

 
3.5 
 
 
 
 
3.6  
 

The current Work Plan (Appendix A attached) was agreed by the 
Committee at its meeting on 9 July 2019. Members are asked to 
review its contents to allow new items to be added, or the timing of 
existing items to be altered.  
 
The Work Plan may be supplemented with additional items on an ad-
hoc basis [Draw-Downs], prior to scheduled meetings commencing 
with the approval of the Managing Director as the Responsible 
Council Officer, within the provisions and timescales of the Draw-
Down process as set out in the Committee’s Protocol. 

 
4. Relationship to the Corporate Plan 
 
 Not applicable. 

 
5. Financial, legal, staffing and other administrative implications and risk 

assessments 
 

Financial Implications None 

Legal Implications None 

Staffing Implications None 

Administrative Implications None 

Risk Assessment No uncertainties and/or constraints 

 
6. Appendices 
 

Appendix A: Scrutiny Committee Rolling Work Plan 2019-20  
 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

Documents 
consulted 
 

Date File 
Ref 

Report  
Author 

Section and 
Directorate 

Exempt 
Information 
Category 

Committee  
Minutes of July 
2019 

October 
2019 

 David Hook 
Member Services  
(01322 343276) 

Member 
Services 
MD 

N/A 

 

Page 38Agenda Item 10



Appendix A  

 

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE ROLLING WORK PLAN 2019-20 
 

12 November 2019 4 February 2020 
 

14 April 2020 
 
 

Dartford Cricket Club Annual 
Update 

Draw-Down(s) – t.b.c. 

 
Draw-Down(s) – t.b.c. 

 

 
Orchard Theatre Annual 

Report and Accounts year 
ending 31 March 2019 

 
Review 2019-20  Work 

Plan 

 
Consider Work 

Programme for 2020-21 

 

 
Review 2019-20 Work Plan 

 

 
Reg. 9 Notice 

 
Reg.9 Notice 

 
 

 
Draw-Down(s) – None  

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  

 
 

   

P
age 39

A
genda Item

 10



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 40


	Agenda
	3 Confirmation of the Minutes of the meeting held on 9 July 2019
	7 Regulation 9 Notice
	Plan

	8 Dartford Cricket Club Update (October 2019)
	Item 8 Appendix A

	9 Orchard Theatre Annual Report & Accounts for the Year ending 31 March 2019 (Work Programme)
	Item 9 Appendix A Monitoring Schedule
	Item 9 App. B Orchard Theatre A.R. 18-19
	Item 9 App.  C Orchard Theatre A.R. 2018-19 Profit Share

	10 Review Committee's Rolling Work Plan for 2019-20
	Item 10 Appendix A Rolling WorkPlan2019-20




